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May 4, 2023 

 

HONORABLE CITY COUNCIL 

 

RE: Proposed Amendment to Chapter 4 of the 2019 Detroit City Code relative to Temporary 

Signs and Special Events  

 

 

On February 9th of this year the Planning and Economic Development Standing Committee 

received the annual report of the Planning and Development Department  (P&DD) as required by 

the sign ordinance, Chapter 4 of the 2019 Detroit City Code.  The report provides a review of 

sign waivers processed over the course of the preceding year and also makes recommendations 

for amendments to the sign ordinance, including amendments for signage related to special 

events such as the Grand Prix. The City Planning Commission (CPC), having received a 

presentation of P&DD’s findings during its February 2, 2023 meeting, supported them and 

concurrently submitted a report in support of P&DD’s recommendations.  Both reports are 

attached for your reference.   At that time the Standing Committee referred the matter to the Law 

Department for review and preparation of appropriate amendments to the City Code.  

 

The Law Department has reviewed and prioritized the requested amendments. As an initial 

response the Department has drafted and approved as to form, an ordinance to effectuate the 

most immediately changes to City Code, addressing temporary signage around special events.  

The ordinance is being submitted under separate cover by the Law Department.  

 

A selection of specific revisions contained in this amendment include:  

• Exempts unilluminated/nonstructural/small temporary signs from permitting/licensing 

requirements (Sec 4-4-17). 

• Reorganizes the sections within Division to put general standards first and then specific 

standards for special circumstances later within the Division.  

• Allows relatively more temporary signs to be displayed at a given premises at any given 

time (Section 4-4-182(a)). 

• Allows relatively greater aggregate areas of temporary signage in sign districts other than 

low-density residential (Section 4-4-182(c)). 

• Allows temporary signage to be placed in otherwise prohibited locations, subject to 

transparency requirements for temporary signs covering windows/glazing (Section 4-4-

183(1), (2)). 

• Clarifies that temporary signs are subject to the general sign standards and business sign 

standards set forth in Divisions 2 and 3, except if alternate standards are set forth in 

Division 7, which controls. 
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• Creates new temporary signage allowance for premises subject to approved special event 

permitting. 

• Removes the limits on PDD’s authority to consider requests for adjustments/waivers 

related to temporary signs No change to the standards for PDD’s discretion to 

approve/deny such requests. (Section 4-4-182(e), also 4-4-184(b)). 

• Assigns responsibility for removal of temporary signs to both the owner of the premises 

and the permit applicant.  

 

Council Member Benson continues his support of updates and improvements to the City’s 

signage regulations and is the sponsor of the is Ordinance in conduction with PDD and CPC. The 

Law Department, PDD and CPC will be prepared to speak to the matter during the Committee 

session. 

 

As indicated above, this is the first proposed amendment resulting from the recommendations in 

the Planning and Development Department’s February 3, 2023 report.  The Law Department has 

determined that a more exhaustive effort will be required to prepare a subsequent set of 

amendments to address the remaining recommendations of P&DD and CPC .  We anticipate a 

second ordinance with proposed changes to the Sign Ordinance will come before you in the fall, 

when ready. 

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

  
 Marcell R. Todd, Jr., Director 
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February 3, 2023 

HONORABLE CITY COUNCIL 

RE: The annual Sign Waiver Report and recommendations of the Planning and Development 

Department. 

 

On Thursday, January 2, 2023 during the regular meeting of the City Planning Commission 

(CPC) the Planning and Development Department (PDD) presented its annual Sign Waiver 

Report and corresponding recommendations.  

Many of the items presented were carryovers from last year’s report including the impact to sign 

regulations in PD (Planned Development) zoning districts across the City, a chief concern to the 

Commission.  As socialized during the preparation and adoption of the Sign Ordinance the intent 

was to retain legislative control over signage in the PC (Public Center), PCA (Public Center 

Adjacent), PD and SD5 (Special Development Casino and Casino Complexes).  Unfortunately, 

an additional provision inserted during the finalizing of the Sign Ordinance was later found to 

have the effect of nullifying the signage provisions recommended by CPC and approved by City 

Council for every PD district including such signage regulation. This has resulted in confusion 

for these developments and the responsible City agencies and place an additional Burden on 

PDD having to process unintended sign waivers. 

The document also identifies potential conflicts with signage for special events like the Grand 

Prix as it returns to Downtown Detroit.  Similarly, we see potential conflicts for other special 

events that the City will host, such as the NFL Draft and the NCAA Final Four.  

RECOMMENDATION 

With respect to these two highlighted instances and the others addressed in the Sign Waiver 

report, PDD is recommending amendment of the Sign Ordinance to address these concerns.  

Upon receiving the presentation and report the Commission voted to support PDD 

recommendations giving particular note to the item spoken to above.  The Commission also 

recommended the Council consider some limitation within regulatory allowance on marijuana 

related signage. 

CPC staff respectfully recommends the Your Honorable Body refer the matter to the Law 

Department, Building Safety Engineering and Environment, PDD, LPD and CPC to prepare the 

necessary amendments to the City Code. 
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 Respectfully Submitted, 

 LAUREN HOOD, CHAIRPERSON 

  

 Marcell R. Todd, Jr., Director 

 

cc:  Antoine Bryant, Director PDD 

David Bell, Director BSEED 

Conrad Mallett, Corp Counsel 

 












